APPROVED MINUTES OF THE MEETING LIFESPRING BOARD OF DIRECTORS February 13, 2024

PRESENT

Susan Puretz, President Natalee Rosenstein, Vice-President Maureen Bybee, Secretary Peg Nau, Treasurer Laura Phillips, Registrar & Task Force for Online Learning Connie Cuttle, Curriculum Committee Coordinator Prudence Garcia Renart, Events Committee Coordinator Betsy Mills, Program Support Co-Coordinator Susan Davis, Membership Coordinator Maureen Huben, Hospitality Coordinator Betty Schoen-Rene Member-at-Large Diane McDowell, Member-at-Large Anne Miller, Member-at-Large Leslie Surprenant, Member-at-Large Lydia Edelhaus, Member-at-Large Rich Davis, AV Coordinator Leeanne Thornton, Saugerties Town Board Liaison to the Senior Education Commission Colleen Greco, Member of Lifespring and the Senior Education Commission Fran Jacobson, Member of Lifespring and the Senior Education Commission Bob Saturn, Member of Lifespring

ABSENT

None

This regularly scheduled online meeting of the Board was called to order by Susan P. at 9:30 a.m.

A. Minutes: January 9, 2024 and February 6, 2024

A **MOTION to approve** the minutes of Jan 9, 2024 was made by Anne with a second by Diane. Without discussion, the **MOTION was approved** with a vote of 13 yes and 1 abstention.

A **MOTION to approve** the minutes of Feb 6, 2024 was made by Natalee with a second by Maureen H. Without discussion, the **MOTION was approved** with a vote of 13 yes and 1 abstention.

B. President's Report and General Updates

Susan P noted that Bob Saturn is attending today's meeting with a concern about safety at the WJC for in person classes in the spring 2024 semester. She and Bob have spoken about this previously regarding the fall 2023 semester. Natalee affirmed that the WJC is continuing its existing security policies including locked doors and close work with the Saugerties Police Department. No further action was taken or recommended by the Board.

C. Old Business

- a. Vote on amended bylaws as discussed at the Special Meeting held on February 6. Natalee made a **MOTION** with a second by Connie to approve the Proposed Revised Bylaws which are to become effective May 14, 2024.
 - i. Leslie noted a missing period and grammatically incorrect use of "their" which she will send to Maureen B for correction in the document.
 - ii. Without further discussion, the **MOTION PASSED** with a vote of 14 Yes, 1 No and 0 Abstentions.
- b. Next steps for the amended bylaws. Laura reported that Maureen B. will send a draft of today's minutes with a ballot to vote on whether to approve the minutes to all board members. In order to go forward to the SEC for their review and acceptance of the minutes of the February 13th LS Board meeting (that includes the passing of the Bylaws changes), we need the minutes of today's meeting approved by the Board. Laura showed the ballot that will accompany the draft minutes. Leslie suggested adding a space for comments on the ballot. The Bylaws Committee asked that you cast your vote to approve or not as soon as you receive the draft minutes and ballot. We are using this process to enable us to meet the requirement that Members have a 30 day window to review and vote on any proposed amendments to the Bylaws. If these draft minutes are approved and the minutes are accepted by the SEC, Natalee will send the amended bylaws to the Membership with an introduction and explanation.

D. Sharing Material Motion -

Leslie Suprenant moved her previously tabled motion regarding the sharing of information from other LLIs with Lifespring Members to the agenda. Leslie presented her reasoning for the motion and her dilemma of representing the membership when she has no access to their contact information and they have no clear access to any Member-at-Large. She presented the results of a small survey she conducted with a group of 5 members known to her outside of Lifespring. (See attached report to the Board) Discussion by Board Members included both support and reservations about the motion. Concerns about how the policy might be implemented were raised but recognized as a separate issue from the policy itself. After discussion, the **MOTION NOW READS:** Lifespring may share information with its members regarding events hosted by other LLIs that are free and open to other

LLIs or to the public. Natalee called the question. **MOTION APPROVED** by a vote of 11 yes, 4 no, with no abstentions.

E. New Business

- a. Update re: WJC and Spring semester
- b. Natalee reported a very positive meeting was held with Rahel of the WJC. Natalee, Susan P, Laura and Susan D represented Lifespring at the meeting.
 - i. For the Spring 2024 semester Lifespring may use the 2nd TV. The insurance certificate is in place. There are no restrictions on dates.
 - ii. For Fall 2024 and Spring 2025 we will need a new agreement. Space at the WJC is available with no change in the rental rate. Other current terms will remain in place. Space may be used on April 16 but no bread products will be permitted in the building due to Passover. The WJC has hired a new employee, Victor, as office manager, who is adept with technology. To add Victor to the new contract as dedicated support for Lifespring prior to noon, would be an additional \$27/hour for his time. Victor would be an employee of the WJC during these hours. Natalee asked Peg to review and report any budget recommendations regarding possibly hiring Victor at our next meeting. Rich suggested that if the Annual Meeting is to be hybrid this year that we hire Victor for technology assistance. The WJC is unavailable to Lifespring on Oct. 2 but is available on Oct. 9.
 - iii. Connie reported the dates for fall 2024 classes are: Mondays online Oct. 7, 14, 21, 28, Nov 4 and 11. Wednesdays at the WJC Oct. 9,16,23,30, Nov 6 and 13.
- c. Water Bottles Lydia as Class Manager Coordinator reopened a pre-COVID discussion of reusable water bottles as gifts to Presenters rather than the weekly purchase and supply of bottled water to them. Lydia made a **MOTION** with a second by Diane that Lifespring give Presenters reusable water bottles with the Lifespring logo, second by Diane. Lydia noted that the cost ranges from \$270 to \$400 for 50 bottles. 50 should last about 3 semesters. **MOTION carried** with a vote of 14 yes and 1 no. Lydia is authorized to select the model of water bottle.
- d. **MOTION** by Laura with a second by Connie to provide funds in an amount not to exceed \$400 for purchase of water bottles by Lydia. **MOTION PASSED** with a vote of 13 yes, 1 abstention, 0 Noes.

MOTION TO ADJOURN by Laura second by Anne. Without discussion, the **MOTION** was approved unanimously.

Susan P. adjourned the meeting at 11:06 a.m.

Maureen G. Bybee, Secretary

NEXT MEETING:

March 12, 2024 ONLINE at 9:30 A.M.

AGENDA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 13, 2024

A. Minutes: January 9, 2024 and February 6, 2024

B. President's Report and General Updates:

C. Old Business

- 1. Vote: Amended BYLAWS
- 2. Follow-up about the BYLAWS and moving forward with them
- 3. Sharing material Motion

D. New Business (Looking Forward)

- 1. Update re: WJC and Spring semester
- 2. Approving dates for Fall 2024 at the WJC
- 3. Water Bottles

NEXT MEETING: March 12, 2024 (on zoom) at 9:30

REPORTS TO THE LIFESPRING BOARD MEETING for February 13, 2024

PRESIDENT:

The month of January has been a "VACATION" for me (and most of you as well). However, there have been several Board members who have been very active and at least one of their activities we will be voted on at our February 13th Board meeting. I am talking specifically about the committee members who produced the

proposed new set of By-laws (which to my way of thinking was a lot of misguided efforts, to wit, "a rose is a rose is a rose"). Of note is that several of us (Natalee, Susan D and Laura) met with Rahel, who, as you know, is the Executive Director of the WJC. Lifespring now has dates for 2024-2025 as well as the fees for that time period.

Susan Puretz, President VICE

PRESIDENT:

No report as Vice-President. See report from the Nominating Committee that follows. Natalee Rosenstein **TREASURER**:

		RER'S REPORT nuary 2024	
		BALANCE FORWARD	\$24,762.21
INCOME	Amt	Received From	Notes
1/31/2024	\$44.01	Interest	
Monthly Income Total	\$44.01		
EXPENSE	Amt	Payee	
1/8/2024	\$161.96	1416 Laura Phillips	Zoom and Google
1/8/2024	\$0.00	1417 Susan Puretz	Replace #1400
1/22/2024	\$988.75	1418 Anna Landewe	Website & Catalog
1/31/2024	\$300.00	1419 Anna Landewe	Website & Catalog
Monthly Expense Total	\$1,450.71		
		ENDING BALANCE	\$23,355.51

Peg Nau, Treasurer

REGISTRAR AND TASKFORCE COORDINATOR:

Registration and Taskforce Report for Lifespring Board Meeting February 13, 2024

Final registration numbers for the February 7 and 14 mini courses:

The total registered was 174. 125 are members and 49 are guests.

20 said a Lifespring member told them

18 received a Lifespring email

2 saw it in the Freeman

2 saw it in Hudson Valley One

The other 7 guest answers were either blank or miscellaneous answers.

21 were on 2023-24 interest list

3 were 2022-23 members who did not join in fall 2023

3 were current year presenters

148 signed up for period A at 9:30

149 signed up for period B at 11:30

Class signups

A1 Bricks 54	B1 Hildegard 49
A2 Bowermaster 36	B2 Stone Landscapes 62
A3 Chestnut St 58	B3 Idylls 38

Kathy Wise and Roz Abramov are participating as Zoom co-hosts for the mini course presentations. The taskforce hosts are Rich Davis, Maureen Bybee and Laura Phillips. The next Winter Presentation, Sustainable Landscapes for Community and Home will be at 11:00 am, Wednesday March 6, with Stefan Yarabek. Registration will begin February 19 and end March 4. This is open to members and guests.

Registration for the Lifespring Spring Semester will begin February 26 and end March 11. An email with a link to the registration form will be sent to Lifespring members at 9:00 am on the 26th.

Laura Phillips

STANDING COMMITTEES

CURRICULUM:

Curriculum Committee Report to the Board February 13, 2024

Members of the Curriculum Committee have hit the ground running. To date we have two winter presentations filled and at our next meeting expect to have 8-10 confirmed in person classes for the Fall 2024 semester.

Respectfully submitted,

Connie Cuttle

EVENTS:

"Plans are in progress for the Annual Membership Meeting with people working diligently. For now no news is good news."

Prudence Garcia-Renart

HOSPITALITY:

Nothing to report. Maureen H.

MEMBERSHIP:

Membership Coordinator Report:

We continue to work to build a potential new member pool and enjoy the benefits of being able to invite non-members to attend the Winter Presentations and the February Mini-Series. In addition, we (Laura and I) have created a new group who receive emails from Lifespring that promote any opportunity that is free and open to non-members to register and attend. We are calling this our KIT list (Keeping in Touch) and we have included a cohort of people who were recent members but did not rejoin as well as some from a past interest list who didn't become members. So far (in its earliest stage) it appears that we are getting a good response. We will use the KIT list again to tell people about the March Winter Presentation and then over the summer when notices go out about the arrival of the Fall catalog and the opportunities for enrollment/registration in Lifespring for 2024/25. The KIT list emails contain an "opt out" statement if someone does not wish to hear anything more from Lifespring.

Of course we are also continuing to communicate with our current members and those potential new members who have requested to be on the active Interest List.

Susan Davis

PROGRAM SUPPORT:

Program Support

I have examined the spacing in the WJC rooms for next semester and have a preliminary plan for the classes Will f/u with WJC. Awaiting go ahead from Natalee. Susan Krompier

MEMBERS AT LARGE:

No report. Diane McDowell

See report from Lydia Edelhaus below under Class Managers

See report from Anne under Publications Coordinator

Report from Leslie Surprenant

Prepared and presented by Member at Large Leslie Surprenant at Feb. 13, 2024 Lifespring Board Meeting Background:

A motion to allow Lifespring to distribute information with members on events and presentations by other LLIs that are free and open to the public was made by Leslie Surprenant at the November 14, 2023 Board meeting. The motion was tabled until the February 13, 2024 meeting.

Members at Large (MAL) are to represent members; however, MAL do not have access to membership contact information due to the practice of Lifespring limiting contact information to the Registrar and others on as-needed basis. The result is that Members at Large have access to members only during breaks at in-person events and in-person classes and members do not have contact information for MAL.

As a Member at Large without access to membership, I contacted 5 members I know outside of Lifespring as follows:

Members:

1 long-term and continuous member 1 long-term and intermittent member 3 members joining within 1 to 4 years

I posed the following questions to these 5 members in an email:

When other LLIs (Bard, Vassar?) want to extend an invitation to Lifespring members for their sole LLI-sponsored events, would you want to know about the invitation?

Responses:

Why would anyone on the board feel that sharing information offered by another LLI even be an issue? Participation in Lifespring indicates to me a real interest in learning and community. I'm inclined to want to learn from courses offered by other groups.

Yes, I would like to read their descriptions and consider watching ones I think interesting.

Yes! That would be great! The members would never know about these other events if not shared through the LS board.

Yes.

If yes - then:

Would you want such invitations when the event is a collaborative effort - ie co- sponsored?

Responses:

It isn't so much who collaborates, as it is, what is the content?

Would you want Lifespring to filter invitations and pass on only topics like local history, art etc - ie non-political, non-controversial topics?

OR

Would you want to make your own choice as to what you're interested in ie Lifespring share invitations without filtering out anything Lifespring deems might be political, controversial, or offensive to some members?

It's asking too much of the Board to either have to investigate all the collaborators or have to preview every presentation. It's just more practical to let them pick and choose, using their own judgement, which of these invitations to allow. In other words, I do not think it is wise to let any LLI or LLI plus cosponsors, have carte blanche access to Lifespring's choices for members.

(NOTE: This member proposed a process for consideration)

I can see why long time caretakers of Lifespring are concerned about controversial, potentially offensive subjects. Lifespring has such a variety of members. But in deference to one of Lifespring's essential goals, learning, I get the viewpoint of opening the door wider and letting people learn more about their world...

Lifespring is supposed to be a Lifelong Learning Institute and every topic is going to be somehow offensive (or whatever is the flavor of the month) to someone in the membership. I don't think the events should be censored. If members don't want to go- then don't, but maybe someone else would like to.

I would like All invitations forwarded to All members so we can determine our interest in participating. I would have loved to hear Jamie Raskin for example. Thanks for representing an open dialog!!

One method to control people is control of information. I can determine what I want to attend or filter for myself. With the pandemic, we opened a new platform for people unable or unwilling to interact in person. Information about Zoom seminars from anywhere in the country seems like a great way fro many of our members to maintain some sort of "normalcy"

AD HOC COMMITTEES

AV:

Nothing to report from AV. Waiting to provide AV input on room assignments for spring semester - especially on classes requiring AV,

Rich Davis richdavis@earthlink.net

CLASS MANAGERS:

My Board Report:

Class Management – several discussions/meetings with Laura Phillips to learn history of earlier proposal for permanent water bottles for presenters rather than disposable individual plastic bottles. Laura obtained some samples & we discussed. To be discussed at upcoming Board meeting.

General – participated in several CC meetings/discussions/outreach efforts as unofficial member of the CC. Respectfully submitted, Lydia Edelhaus, Member at Large

PUBLICATIONS COORDINATOR:

No report

Anne Miller, Member-at-Large

BYLAWS COMMITTEE

Below please find the Proposed Revised Bylaws including the edits suggested by Board Members at the February 6 Special Meeting.

Natalee Rosenstein

PROPOSED REVISED BYLAWS OF THE LIFESPRING: SAUGERTIES ADULT LEARNING COMMUNITY

approved by the Board of Directors on TBD

ARTICLE I – NAME

The name of the organization will be Lifespring: Saugerties Adult Learning Community (hereafter called Lifespring). Lifespring is an official Town of Saugerties community group with its principal offices at the Town Hall, 4 High Street, Saugerties, New York 12477. The Senior Education Commission created by Local Law 1, 2018, of the Town of Saugerties will oversee the operation of Lifespring.

ARTICLE II – PURPOSE

Lifespring: Saugerties Adult Learning Community offers a broad range of noncredit courses and other educational opportunities that support a lifelong love of learning. Lifespring works to provide a welcoming and inclusive environment in which a diverse membership participates in varied learning experiences.

ARTICLE III – MEMBERSHIP

Section 1 – Nature of membership

Membership in Lifespring will be open to all adults who wish to join and participate in the activities of the organization. A member in Lifespring is any person who has been admitted for membership and has paid dues for the current membership year. Membership will be renewable annually based upon payment of the annual dues. Dues may be waived by a decision of the Board of Directors.

Section 2 – Members' rights

Members will have the right to vote at all general meetings, hold office, and participate in the activities of the organization.

Section 3 – Membership year

The membership year will be August 1 to July 31.

Section 4 – Voting

Members will elect officers and Members-at-Large of the Board of Directors annually. Officers and members-at-large will be elected by a simple majority of those voting. Newly elected Board members will take office May 14, 2024 the initial year these bylaws are in effect and August 1, in 2025 and thereafter. Voting may be conducted either in-person and/or online.

Section 5 – Annual Membership Meeting

The Annual Membership Meeting will take place either in person and/or online in the spring no later than one month after the end of the spring semester. The purpose of the Annual Membership Meeting will be to inform members of the status of the organization, present the financial report to the membership, announce any amendments to the Bylaws and report the results of the election of new members to the Board. The financial report, the amended Bylaws and election results will be sent by email to the membership after the annual meeting.

ARTICLE IV – GOVERNING BODY

Section 1 – Board of Directors role

The affairs of the organization will be governed by a Board of Directors, hereinafter referred to as the "Board." The Board is responsible for the overall policy and direction of the organization within any guidelines set by the Town of Saugerties Senior Education Commission.

Section 2 – Board of Directors meetings

The Board of Directors will meet a minimum of nine times a year either in-person and/or online at times and places to be decided by the Executive Committee. The dates, times and location will be communicated to all Board Members in advance. Members of the Board are expected to regularly attend scheduled meetings. All Board Meetings are open to Members of Lifespring.

Section 3 – Special meetings

The Executive Committee Leader will call special meetings of the Board as necessary or if requested by three Board members. Special meetings can be

held in person or online. Notice of special meetings must be disseminated to Board members at least three days before the meeting date.

Section 4 – Quorum

A simple majority of voting Board Members must be present to create a quorum for conducting business.

Section 5 – Conduct of business

The Board will conduct its business with a simple majority vote of those present and eligible to vote.

Section 6 – Records

The records of the organization, both online and hardcopy, including but not limited to meeting minutes, financial reports, manuals, handbooks, catalogs, and other documents pertaining to the functioning of the organization will be maintained online and stored at Saugerties Town Hall.

ARTICLE V – BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEMBERSHIP

Section 1- Board of Directors Membership

The Board of Directors will consist of fifteen (15) voting members of the Board as follows: six Members at Large, the Secretary, the Treasurer, and seven (7) Coordinators of the Standing Committees as follows: Curriculum, Events, Hospitality, Membership, Onsite Program Support, Publications, and Registration. The current President will serve as an advisor to the Board as a non-voting *Ex Officio* member.

Section 2 Board of Directors Election and Selection Processes

- A. Election: The Secretary, Treasurer, and six Members-at-Large will be elected by the membership. Three Members-at-Large will be elected in even years, and three elected in odd years. The Treasurer will be elected in odd years and the Secretary in even years.
- B. Appointment: The Coordinators of the Standing Committees will be appointed by the Executive Committee leader and approved by the Board.

Section 3 – Board Member Terms

- A. The secretary, treasurer, and six at-large have no term limits and may serve successive elected two-year terms, with the exception that the initial term of the additional (sixth) member at large will be for a one-year term.
- B. Standing Committee Coordinators have no term limits and may be reappointed by the Executive Committee every two years and the appointment(s) approved by the Board.

Section 4 - Removal of an Officer or Member of the Board:

Any officer or member of the Board, whether elected or appointed, may be removed for cause by a 3/4 vote of the Board at a scheduled meeting with a guorum present.

Section 5 – Vacancies

Any vacancy that occurs will be filled by the Executive Committee leader who will appoint a member of the organization to serve the remainder of the term. The appointment will be made with the approval of the Board of Directors. If the Executive Committee Leader's seat becomes vacant, the Executive Committee Assistant Leader will assume the office for the remainder of the Executive Committee Leader's term.

ARTICLE VI – LEADERSHIP AND ADMINISTRATION

Section 1 - Executive Leadership Committee

The Executive Leadership Committee will serve as a steering committee for the Board, managing and implementing the general course of its operations.

The Executive Leadership Committee will be responsible for managing the financial, administrative, programmatic, and outreach functions of Lifespring. It will work with the organization's officers, and the Coordinators of Standing and *Ad-Hoc* committees to address issues, problems, or needs as they may arise.

Section 2 - Executive Leadership Committee Membership

- A. The Board will nominate and approve five (5) Board members to serve as the Executive Leadership Committee. At least two members of the Executive Leadership Committee will be Members-at-Large if possible. If one or more Members-at-Large decline nomination to the Committee, the Board will nominate and approve other Board members to fill either one or both seats normally set aside for members-at-large.
- B. Executive Leadership Committee members will serve a two-year term and may be reappointed by the Board.

Section 3 - Executive Leadership Committee Meetings

The Executive Leadership Committee will meet prior to each Board meeting to collaborate with the Executive Leadership Committee Leader in preparing the agenda and a Report to the Board for each Board Meeting. The Executive Leadership Committee will hold additional meetings as required to meet the needs of the organization. Members of the Board may attend Executive Leadership Committee meetings.

Section 4 - Executive Leader Committee Decision Making Process

The Executive Leadership Committee will use a consensus process to reach decisions and revert to a vote at the end of a discussion if consensus cannot be achieved. A majority vote of three (3) of the five (5) members will move the decision forward.

Section 5 - Executive Leadership Committee Responsibilities

- A. Select an Executive Leadership Committee Leader and an Executive Leadership Committee Assistant Leader. (See Article 6 Section 6 below.)
- B. Address issues brought to the attention of the Executive Leadership Committee by committee members, Board members and/or the membership.
- C. Nominate Board members, for approval by the Board, to serve as representatives to other LLIs and/or other community organizations.
- D. Work with Standing and/or Ad Hoc Committee Coordinators as needed to address issues that may arise.
- E. Communicate regularly with the membership in addition to the annual membership meeting and may do so in collaboration with the Coordinators and/or Ad Hoc committees as applicable to the issue at hand.
- F. Participate in the Annual Membership Meeting along with the Executive Leadership Committee Leader and Assistant Leader and other Board members to provide an update on the status of the organization.
- G. Monitor or assign a member of the Executive Leadership Committee to monitor email sent to the organization and forward it, as applicable, to the appropriate committee(s) for action or response.

Section 6 - Executive Leadership Committee Leader and Assistant Leader and Term of Office

- A. The Executive Leadership Committee will select a member of the committee to serve as the Executive Leadership Committee Leader for the Board for a period of one year and a second member to serve as the Executive Leadership Committee Assistant Leader. At the end of the Executive Committee Leader's one-year term, the Assistant Leader will assume the role of Executive Committee Leader for one year.
- B. If the Assistant Leader is unable to serve as the Executive Committee Leader at the end of his/her one-year term, the Executive Leadership Committee will select another member of the Committee to serve as the Executive Committee Leader.

Section 7- Responsibilities of the Executive Leadership Committee Leader The

Executive Leadership Committee Leader will:

- A. Prepare the agenda for Board Meetings, with input from the Executive Leadership Committee to address issues regarding overall policy and direction of the organization which have been brought to the Executive Leadership Committee by Board members and/or a member or members of the organization.
- B. Convene and lead Board Meetings and call special meetings of the Board as necessary or if requested by the Executive Leadership Committee or by three Board members.
- C. Appoint the Coordinators of the seven Standing Committees, and *Ad Hoc* Committees and/or taskforces as needed with approval by the Board.
- D. Represent the organization to the Town and to other organizations and/or may recommend to the Executive Leadership Committee a designee to serve in this capacity either from the Executive Leadership Committee, the Board, or the membership.
- E. Communicate with the Town regarding insurance, legal, or other issues as needed.
- F. Serve as the organization's co-signatory along with the Executive Leadership Committee Assistant Leader on lease agreements, and other legal documents pertaining to operation of Lifespring.
- G. Delegate specific responsibilities to the Executive Leadership Committee Assistant Leader, other Executive Leadership Committee members, and/or Board members as necessary to best meet the needs of the organization.
- H. Prepare the agenda for the Annual Membership Meeting with input from the Executive Leadership Committee; work with the Executive Leadership Committee Assistant Leader and the Events Committee Coordinator on the meeting's format.
- I. The Executive Leadership Committee Leader will present a report at the meeting on the organization's activities and may designate others from either the Executive Leadership Committee or Board to report on relevant issues.
- J. Perform tasks and/or delegate assignments as needed for the effective functioning of the organization.

Section 8 - Executive Leadership Committee Assistant Leader Responsibilities

The Executive Leadership Committee Assistant Leader will:

A. Serve in the Executive Committee Leader's place as needed

- B. Serve as the organization's co-signatory, along with either the Executive Leadership Committee Leader and/or the Treasurer, on lease agreements and other legal documents pertaining to the operation of Lifespring.
- C. Collect monthly Reports to the Board from the Executive Leadership Committee Leader, Coordinators of the Standing Committees and from the Coordinators of Ad Hoc committees and create the Executive Leadership Committee's monthly Report to the Board.
- D. Work with the Executive Leadership Committee Leader and the Events Committee Coordinator to plan the Annual Membership Meeting. Communicate with the rental space owner/representative regarding issues pertinent to the organization's use of the premises and/or equipment.
- E. Perform and/or engage other members in additional duties as needed for the effective functioning of the organization.

ARTICLE VII OFFICEHOLDERS

Section 1 - Treasurer

The Treasurer will:

- A. Serve on the Budget Committee.
- B. Monitor finances and arrange for collection of all monies and payment of expenses.
- C. Report on the financial status of the organization at each Board meeting.
- D. Present an end-of-year financial report at the Annual Membership Meeting.

Section 2 - Secretary

The Secretary will:

- A. Maintain the official records of the organization and record the minutes of all Board meetings.
- B. Notify the Board members of all regular and special Board Meetings and distribute the Draft Minutes, The Executive Committee, monthly Reports to the Board, and Agenda prior to the meeting.
- C. Send the approved minutes of the Lifespring Board Meetings to all Board Members and to the Chair of the Town of Saugerties Senior Education Commission (SEC).
- D. Prepare correspondence as requested by the Executive Committee.
- E. Notify the membership of the date, time and the agenda of the Annual Meeting no less than one month prior to the date of the meeting.

Section 3 – Members at Large

Members-at-Large serve as the voice of the members, representing their interests to the Board. Members-At-Large may volunteer for, or be appointed by, the Executive Committee, to various responsibilities and projects including coordination of *Ad Hoc* committees and may be appointed to serve as a member of the Executive Committee. Members-At-Large are encouraged to join a Standing Committee and to assist on other initiatives, committees, and projects.

ARTICLE VIII STANDING COMMITTEES

Section 1 – Standing Committee Coordinators

The standing committee coordinators are responsible for the coordination of all activities of the committee and sub-committees under their respective management. The coordinators will recruit committee members and provide members with guidance and/or training to enable them to be active and effective committee members. The coordinators will be responsible for maintaining records of all committee meetings and reporting the activities of the committee in a monthly Report to the Board.

Section 2- List of Standing Committees

There will be seven (7) standing committees as follows:

Curriculum Committee

Events Committee

Hospitality Committee

Membership Committee

Onsite Program Support Committee

Publications Committee

Registration Committee

Section 3 – Curriculum Committee

The Curriculum Committee will: develop new courses; recruit presenters; arrange class schedules with the Registrar; and prepare course descriptions and presenter information for the catalog. They will communicate information to the Registrar and to other committees as necessary.

Section 4 – Events Committee

The Events Committee will plan and coordinate special occasions such as, but not limited to, the Annual Meeting.

Section 5 – Hospitality Committee

The Hospitality Committee will oversee the provision of refreshments and coordinate volunteers for food service for in-person LS classes and social events. The Hospitality Committee may partner with the Events Committee to assist with social functions or events that are in addition to classes.

Section 6 – Membership Committee

The Membership Committee will oversee the welcoming of new and returning members each semester and will address the general satisfaction of the current members, responding to concerns and suggestions as appropriate. The tasks of this committee coordinator will include working with the Registrar and the Executive Leadership Committee on the admission process and with the Lifespring Board on policies and initiatives affecting the general membership.

Section 7 – Onsite Program Support Committee

The Program Support Committee will be responsible for management of the physical requirements of in-person classrooms. The Coordinator will work with the Registrar and other standing and *ad hoc* committees to determine how to best meet Lifespring's support requirements for each semester.

Section 8 – Publications Committee

The Publications Committee is responsible for assembling course catalogues and other written materials as needed for the effective functioning of the organization, and for keeping the Lifespring website current and accessible for all members. The Publications Committee will work with the Curriculum Committee and other Standing and Ad Hoc committees as needed to support and enhance the mission of the organization.

Section 9 – Registration Committee

The Registration Committee under the leadership of its Coordinator, the Registrar, designs and manages the enrollment process for courses, presentations, performances and other events sponsored by Lifespring in addition to maintaining a database of all current members.

ARTICLE IX- AD HOC COMMITTEES

Section 1 – Committee Appointments

Ad Hoc committees and their Coordinators will be appointed by the Executive Leadership Committee Leader and their appointment approved by the Board. Unless the coordinators of Ad Hoc committees are already Board members, they will not become members of the Board because of coordinating an Ad Hoc committee. Ad Hoc committees include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Audio- Visual Committee
- 2. Budget Committee
- 3. Bylaws Committee
- 4. Nomination and Election Committee
- 5. Online Support

Section 2 – Budget Committee

The Executive Leadership Committee Leader will appoint a Budget Committee of at least three members including the Treasurer with the approval of the Board. The Budget Committee in consultation with existing standing and *ad hoc* committees will develop a budget for discussion and approval by the Board prior to May 31st each year. The Budget will be presented to the Membership annually.

Section 3 – Nominating and Election Committee

The Executive Committee Leader will appoint a Nominating and Election Committee of at least three members with the approval of the Board. The nominating and election committee will reach out to members to run for elected office. The Nomination and Election Committee will create a list of candidates for endorsement by the Board. All candidates will be listed on the ballot and additional names may be written in.

ARTICLE X – FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year will be August 1 through July 31.

ARTICLE XI – PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

Roberts Rules of Order Revised will govern the organization in all cases to which they apply and are consistent with these Bylaws

ARTICLE XII - BYLAWS COMMITTEE

Section 1- Members and Purpose

The Executive Leadership Committee Leader will appoint a Bylaws Committee at least once every three years to review current Bylaws for the purpose of revising and updating them as needed. The Bylaws Committee will present suggested

changes to the Board for review and approval. The Board will present any recommended changes to the membership to be voted on in accordance with ARTICLE XII, Section 3.

Section 2- Request to Amend the Bylaws

A request to amend the Bylaws may be made by any member or group of members and will be referred to the Bylaws Committee. If no Bylaws Committee is in effect, the Executive Leadership Committee will appoint one to consider the proposed revision.

Section 3- Amendments

These Bylaws may be amended by a two-thirds affirmative vote of those voting. Email and/or other notice to the members of any proposed amendment(s) to the Bylaws must be given at least thirty days prior to voting. Voting may be conducted either online or in-person. Approved amendments to the Bylaws will be announced at the Annual Membership Meeting and will be emailed and/or otherwise sent to the membership.

Bylaws Adopted by the Board: February 17, 2010

Bylaws Adopted by Membership: June 8, 2010

Amended Bylaws Adopted by Membership: May 24, 2011

Amended Bylaws Adopted by Membership: June 5, 2013

Amended Bylaws Adopted by Membership: June 7, 2017

Amended Bylaws Adopted by Membership: May 29, 2019

Amended Bylaws Adopted by Membership May 17, 2022